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(English Translation For Reference Only)

AUDITOR’S REPORT

PwC ZT Shen Zi (2015) No. 20807
(Page 10f 2)

To the Board of Directors of DBS Bank (China) Limited,

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DBS Bank (China) Limited
(hereinafter “the Bank”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2014, the income
statement, the cash flow statement and the statement of changes in owners’ equity for the vear
then ended, and the notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management of the Bank is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in‘accordance with China Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for cur audit opinion.

YR B PR E VTS G EAIK)

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP, 11/F PricewaterhouseCoopers Center
2 Corporate Avenue, 202 Hu Bin Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai 200021, PRC
T: +86 (21) 2323 8888, F: +86 (21) 2323 8800, www.pwecn.com
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(English Translation For Reference Only)

AUDITOR’S REPORT

(continued)

PwCZT Shen Zi (2015) No. 20807
(Page 2 of 2)

To the Board of Directors of DBS Bank (China) Limited,
Opinion
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,

the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2014, and its financial performance and

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the requirements of Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises. :

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP
Shanghai , the People’s Republic of China

30 January 2015
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Al amounts expressed in Rmb unless otherwise stated)

[English translation for reference only]
ASSETS

Cash and deposits with the central bank

Deposits with other banks

Placements with financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative assets

Financial assets purchased under resale agreements
Interest receivable

Loans and advances

investment securities - available-for-sale

Fixed assets

Long-term prepaid expenses

Deferred income tax assets
Other assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Due to other banks and financial institutions
Placements from other banks

Derivative liabilities

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
Due to customers

Payroll and welfare payable

Taxes payable

Interest payable

Bonds issued

Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

OWNER'S EQUITY

Paid-in capital

Capital surplus

Other comprehensive income
Surplus reserve

General risk reserve
Undistributed profits

TOTAL OWNER'S EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY

- Notes

9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20
21

Notes

22
23
13
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

31
32

33
34
35

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

01 January 2013

14,641,751,532 14,696,149,526 14,527,884,912
6,808,957,502 8,041,985,706 14,213,304,799
9,869,974,765 12,869,481,043 11,457,103,074
6,404,708,433 3,587,372,816 3,987,444,525
2,466,125,887 4,037,184,710 2,873,823,927
2,018,231,539 2,857,612,839 -
676,851,270 569,415,748 592,714,121
51,312,240,968 48,080,976,406 46,851,810,166
3,114,560,775 1,727,323,916 3,051,085,805
84,394,404 86,906,367 97,164,247
19,507,951 24,046,681 34,745,216
305,382,068 173,421,744 160,799,598
331,279,100 135,295,201 140,819,797

98,053,966,194

96,887,172,703

97,988,680,187

31 December 2014 31 December 2013 01 January 2013
3,545,531,502 497,606,912 1,106,785,999
8,902,778,114 10,656,090,100 13,935,063,731
2,464,821,531 4,043,036,975 2,744,080,709
2,249,084,549 - 2,141,329,682

68,440,297 462 69,721,042,098 67,810,780,313
145,485,453 120,534,665 113,662,239
205,559,525 120,568,837 25,904,944

1,052,884,293 1,278,794,485 1,207,079,063
2,001,569,222 1,975,960,214 497,867,340
530,833,642 326,726,348 493,053,505
89,5638,945,283 88,741,360,644 90,075,597,525
6,300,000,000 6,300,000,000 6,300,000,000
22,571,343 22,571,343 22,571,343
(611,516) (17,248,288) (8,924,273)
219,306,108 184,048,801 159,943,560
872,700,000 805,900,000 587,500,000
1,101,054,066 850,540,103 851,992,032
8,515,020,901 8,145,812,059 7,913,082,662
98,053,966,194 96,887,172,703 97,988,680,187

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chairman:
Dominic Ho

CEO:
Neill Ge

CFO:

Cristo Chow
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts expressed in Rmb unless otherwise stated)

[English translation for reference only]

interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expenses
Net fee and commission income

investment gains

Fair value (losses)/gains

Net gains from foreign exchange and
derivative transactions

Other business income

Operating income

Business tax and levies

General and administrative expenses
Asset impairement losses

Operating expense

Operating profit

Non-operating income
Non-operating expenses

Total profit

Less: Income tax

Net profit

Net Cther comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income which will be
reclassified to profit or loss subsequently
-Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of

available-for-sale financial assets

Total comprehensive income

Notes

36
36

37
37

38
39

40

41
42

43

44

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chairman:
Dominic Ho

2014 2013
4,705,702,727 4,157,282,391
(2,695,482,783) (2,704,269,215)
2,010,219,944 1,453,013,176
465,901,177 417,263,737
(63,450,427) (35,127,790)
412,450,750 382,135,947
129,712,903 45,405,385
(42,631,470) 17,530,772
449,450,294 230,778,320

89,085 2,390,027

2,9569,291,506

2,131,253,627

(253,175,920)
(1,627,939,445)
(615,885,901)

(208,764,264)
(1,412,870,692)
{185,351,379)

(2,497 001,266)

(1,806,9886,335)

462,290,240 324,267,292
20,925,790 2,490,498
(15,496,606) (1.972,797)
467,719,424 324,784,993

{115,147,354)

(83,731,581)

352,572,070 241,053,412
16,636,772 (8,324,015)
369,208,842 232,729,397
CFO:
Cristo Chow
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

- CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts expressed in Rmb unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities

Net increase in customer deposits and due
to other banks
Net decrease in deposits with the central bank
and other banks
Net decrease in Financizal assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Net decrease in placements with financial institutions
Net increase in financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements
Net decrease in financizl assets
purchased under resale agreements
interest received
Fee and commission received
Cash received relating to other operating
activities
Sub-total of cash inflow

Net increase in loans and advances
Net decrease in placements from other banks
Net increase in placements with financial institutions
Net decrease in financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements
Net increase in financiai assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Net increase in financial assets
purchased under resale agreements
Interest paid ‘
Fee and commission paid

Cash paid o employees

Payment of taxes

Cash paid relating to other operating activities
Sub-total of cash outflow

Net cash provided from/{used in)
operating activities 45

2014

1,765,030,908

1,752,513,312

2013

1,418,011,469

3,644,630,158

- 380,941,551
3,082,019,428 -
2,249,084,549 -

839,381,300 -
4,479,023,980 4,062,815,079
488,863,167 472,393,122
463,547 117 317,777,513
15,119,463,761 10,296,568,892
(3,846,396,984) (1,447,826,805)

(1,753,311,986)

(3,278,973,631)
(2,352,700,831)

(2,193,802,679)

(2,713,015,152) .
- (2,723,451,666)
(2,823,002,733) (2,602,639,019)
(53,450,427) (35,127,790)
(937,531,719) (806,755,363)
(420,838,500) (207 679,426)
(638,907,361) (774,863,030)
(13,186,454 862) (16,423,820,240)

1,933,008,899

(6,127,251 348)
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

CASH FL.OW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Allamounts expressed in Rmb unless otherwise stated)

[English translation for reference only]

Notes 2014 2013

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from disposal of investment

securities - available-for-sale 2,444,945 503 2,772,643,202
Interest received from investment '

securities - available-for-sale 119,243,225 117,765,685
Cash received from disposal of fixed assets 5,010,847 -
Sub-total of cash inflow 2.569,199,575 2,890,408,887

Cash paid for purchase of investment
securities-available-for-sale

Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and
other long-term assets

Sub-total of cash outflow

Net cash (used in)/provided from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash received from bond issuance
Sub-total of cash inflow

Cash payments for interest expenses
Sub-total of cash outflow

Net cash flows {used in)/provided from financing acti

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

(3,810,000,000)

(54,111,748)

(1,460,000,000)

(26,842,797)

(3,864,111,748)

(1,486,842 797)

(1,294,912,173)

1,403,566,020

1,494,556,343

1,494,556,343

(96,661,038)

(26,333,382)

(96,661,036)

(26,333,382)

(96,661,036)

1,468,222,961

on c¢ash and cash equivalents 6,164,574 {43,284,386)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 547,600,264 (3,298,747,183)

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at
heginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

45

12,461,988,436

15,760,735,619

13,009,588,700

12,461,088,436

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chairman: CEC: CFO:
Dominic Ho Neil Ge Cristo Chow
5]
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only)

GENERAL INFORMATION

DBS Bank (China) Limited (the “Bank”) was established as a wholly-owned subsidiary of DBS
Bank Ltd. ("DBS Bank”) in Shanghai, China.

Prior {o the establishment of the Bank and the transfer of business (the “conversion”), DBS
Bank had three branches (Shanghai, Beijing and Guangzhou) and DBS Bank {Hong Kong) Ltd.
(“DBS HK") had two branches (Shenzhen and Suzhou) in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC") (collectively known as the “Former Branches”). On 22 December 2008, the Bank
obtained an approval from the China Banking Regulatory Commission (“CBRC"} to be
incorporated as a wholly-owned subsidiary of DBS Bank by consolidating the two branches of
DBS Bank (Beijing and Guangzhouw) and two branches of DBS HK (Shenzhen and Suzhou).
The Shanghai Branch of DBS Bank was permitted to maintain its branch status fo carry on its
foreign currency business {the “Retained Branch”).

The Bank obtained its finance approval license No.00000042 from the CBRC and obtained its
business license {Shi Ju) Qi Du Hu Zong Zi No0.044272 from the Shanghai's State
Administration of Industry and Commerce on 22 May 2007 and 24 May 2007, respectively. The
initial registered/paid-up capital of the Bank was RMB 4 billion. Pursuant to the approval from
CBRC on 21 August 2012(Yin Jian Fu(2012)No.428), the Bank increased its registered paid-up
capital to RMB 6.3 hillion. The Bank obtained a new business license No.1116082 from the
Shanghai's State Administration of Industry and Commerce on 24 September 2012.

The Bank’s operating period is non-restricted according to its business license. It is principally
engaged in the provision of foreign currency and Renminbi banking businesses as approved by
the related regulators.

DBS Bank (China) Limited Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone Sub-branch obtained its finance
approval license from CBRC, Shanghai Bureau (HYJBZ[2014] No.3) and obtained its business
license No.310000500539013 from the Shanghai's State Administration of Industry and
Commerce on 3 January 2014 and 6 January 2014 respectively. Currently, the Bank has ten
branches and twenty one sub-branches located in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen, Suzhouy,
Guangzhou, Tianjin, Nanning, Dongguan, Hangzhou and Chongqing of the PRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standard for
Business Enterprises - Basic Standard, and other accounting standards and relevant
regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance on 15 February 2006 and in subsequent periods
(hereafter collectively referred to as “the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises” or
“CAS").

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR BUSINESS
ENTERPRISES -

The financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2014 are in compliance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and truly and completely present the
financial position of the Bank as of 31 December 2014 and of the financial performance, cash
flows and other information for the year then ended.
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB uniess otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLECIES

Accounting period

The Bank's accounting period starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.
Functional currency

The Bank's financial statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB™), which is its functional
currency, being the currency of the primary economic envirenment in which the Bank operates.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured using the spot exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into RMB at the
spot exchange rate as at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange differences arising from
this translation are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the spot exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Contributions to paid-in capital made in
foreign currencies are translated into the RMB denominated paid-in capital account at the
stipulated exchange rate at the contribution date.

Cash dnd cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise assets
balances with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition including:
cash on hand, non-restricted balances with central banks, deposits with other banks and
placements with financial institutions. '

Financial assetsand financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category includes: financial assets and financial liabilities held for frading, derivatives and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

A financial asset or a financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of selling, repurchasing or redemption in the near term or if it is part
of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives (including derivatives
embedded in other contracts but separated for accounting purposes) are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges in accordance with (Note 4 (H)).

Financial assets or financial liabilities except for hybrid instruments are designated at fair value
through profit or loss when:

« Doing so eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies
that would otherwise arise;

« Certain financial assets or financial liabilities portfolios that are managed and evaluated on
a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy and reported to key management personnel on that basis.
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES(continued)
E Financial assets and financial liabilities(continued)
(1) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss(continued)

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value at the initial recognition and subsequent halance sheet dates, and changes in fair value
and the transaction costs are reported in income statement.

{2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market, including deposits with the central bank, deposits with
other banks, placements with financial institutions, financial assets purchased under resale
agreements, loans and advances and investment securities classified as loans and receivables,
When the Bank provides funds or services directly to customers and does not intend to sell the
receivables, the Bank classifies such financial assets as loans and receivables and recognises
them at fair value plus transaction costs at initfal recognition. At subsequent balance sheet
dates, such assets are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method less any
impairment allowances.

(3). Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that are either designated as such or
are not classified in any of the other categories. The Bank also holds such financial assets for
the purpose of investment or satisfying regulatory liquidity requirements. They are intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or
changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices. Financial assets in this category are
held in certain business segments as well as the liquidity management unit. Such financial
assets are recognized at fair value plus related transaction costs at time of acquisition, and are
subsequently measured at fair value at balance sheet dates. Unrealised gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of financial assets classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated directly in equity after deducting
tax impact. When sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments previously
recognised in equity are reclassified to the income statement.

4) Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, being their issuance proceeds net
of transaction costs incurred. They are subsequently stated at amortized cost and any

difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognized in
the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

10
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES(continued)
Financial assets and financiat liabilities(continued)
De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or when they have been transferred together with substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

A financial liability is derecognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liahilities

Fair vaiue is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, wiling parties in an arm's length transaction. The fair values of quoted
investments in active markets are based on current bid prices. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurting market transactions on an arm's length
basis. If the market for a financial asset is not active, the Bank establishes fair value by using
valuation technigues.

Valuation techniques include using recent arm's length market transactions between
knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another
instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash fiow analysis and option pricing
models.

Impairment of financial assets
Assets carried at amortised cost

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. The criteria that the Bank uses
to determine whether there is evidence of an impairment loss include:

(i} Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor , including breach of covenants
and/or financial conditions;

(i) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinguency in interest or principal payments;

(iii) granting of a concession to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, that the Bank would not otherwise consider,;

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

(v) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties of the issuer;

11
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES{continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial
assets in the group. '

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. |f the Bank determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and.
the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding future credit losses that have not
heen incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset Is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the
loss is recognized in income statement. In practice, the Bank will also determine the fair value
of the financial assets with the observed market value and assessed the impairment loss with
that fair value.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized
financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining
and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the
basis of similar and relevant credit risk characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’
ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment
are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical
loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of
current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based
and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly
by the Bank to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is writien off against the related allowance for loan impairment,
Such ioans are written off after all the recovery procedures have been exhausted and the
amount of the loss has been determined. Recoveries in full or in part of amounts previously
written off are credited to the amount of the impairment losses for loans and advances in the
income statement.

12
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES{continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at amoertised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an
improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognized in the
income statement. '

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is evidence that an available-for-
sale financial asset is impaired.

In the case of an equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is a factor in determining whether the asset is impaired.

When there is evidence of an impairment of an available-for-sale financial asset, the cumulative
loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the income statement - is
reclassified from equity o the income statement,

For equity investments, impairment losses are not reversed until they are disposed of. For
impaired debt instruments that subsequently recover in value, the impairment losses are
reversed through the income statement if there has been an identifiable event that led to the
recovery.

Oifsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when:
(i) There is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts,

(i) there is an intention to settle them on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date at which a derivative contract is
entered info and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Gain or losses from changes
in the fair vaiue are recorded in the income statement.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price
(i.e., the fair vaiue of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of the instrument
is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same
instrument (i.e., without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose
variables include only data from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Bank
recognises profits or losses on day 1.

13
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES(continued)
Derivative financial instruments {(continued)

Certain derivatives are embedded in the non-derivative financial instruments {i.e. host
contracts) and the embedded derivative and the corresponding host contract are collectively
referred to as hybrid financial instruments. An embedded derivative shall be separated from the
host contract and accounted for as a derivative if, and only if:

(i) The economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely
related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract;

(i) a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative;

(i) the hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized in profit or loss.

The unrealized gain or loss arising from fair value measurement of separate derivative
instrument is reported as the “fair value gains or losses” in the income statement.

Hedge accounting

At the inception of each hedging relationship, the Bank documents the relationship between the
hedging instrument and hedged item; the risk management objective for undertaking the hedge
transaction; and the methods used to assess the effectiveness of the hedge. At inception and
on an on-going basis, the Bank also documenis its assessment of whether the hedging
instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in the fair value of the hedged item.

Fair value hedge

Fair value hedge is a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognised asset or
liability or an unrecognised firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability or
firm commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect income statement.

For a qualifying fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the hedging derivatives are
recorded in the income statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged
item attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying

amount of a hedged item is amortised to the income statement over its remaining maturity,
using the effective interest method.

14
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Fixed assets

Fixed assets comprise buildings, office equipment and furniture and computers. Fixed assets
purchased or constructed by the Bank are initially recorded at cost.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. However, the carrying amount of any parts of fixed
assets that are being replaced shall be dergcognised and all related subsequent costs are
expensed when incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straighi-line method to write down the cost of such assets
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. For impaired fixed assets, depreciation
is calculated based on carrying amounts after deducting the provision for impairment over their
estimated remaining useful lives.

Estimated useful lives, estimated residual value and annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Estimated useful lives Estimated residual value Depreciation rate
Buildings 42 years 10% 2.14%
Office equipment
and furniture 5-8 years 0%-10% 11.25%-20%
Computers and
other electronic
equipment 2-5 years 0%-10% 18%-50%

The Bank reviews the estimated residual value, useful lives and depreciation method of fixed
assets and makes approptiate adjustments on an annual basis.

When the Bank disposes or ceases to use the fixed assets, or does not expect to further benefit
from fixed assets, the Bank derecognises the assets. Proceeds from sale, transfer or disposal
of fixed assets are recorded in the income statement after deducting carrying value and related
taxes.

15
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DBS BANK (CHINA} LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English transtation for reference only]

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES(continued)
Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include leasehold improvement and other expenses that have
been incurred but are attributable to current and future periods, and should be amortised over a
period of more than one year. Long-term prepaid expenses are amortised on the straight-line
basis over the expected beneficial periods and are presented at cost net of accumulated
amortisation.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Fixed assets or other non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment if there are indications of
impaiment. if the carrying value of such assets is higher than the recoverable amount, the
excess is recognized as an impairment loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s fair value less costs o sell and value in use.

Provision for impairment is determined on individual basis. If it is not-possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Bank determines the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit). A cash-
generating unit is the smallest group of assets that includes the asset and generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it shall not be reversed to the extent of recovery in
value in subsequent periods.

Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognised within
‘interest income' and ‘interest expense’ in the income statement using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period using its effective interest rate.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (e.g., prepayment options, call options and similar
options) but does not consider future credit losses.

The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, such as transaction costs and all other premiums or
discounts. If the cash flows cannot be estimated, the Bank shall use contractual cash flows in
the entire contract period.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of

an impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

16
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
{English translation for reference only]

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES{continued)
Fee and commission income

Fees are generally recognized on the percentage of completion method when the related
service has been provided. Commissions are generally recognized on an accrual basis when
the related service has been received.

Deferred income taxes

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred tax assets shall be recognised for deductible losses or tax credits that can
be carried forward to subsequent years. The deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitiss at
the balance sheet date shall be measured the tax rates that, according to the requirements of
tax laws, are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is seftled.

Deferred tax assets shall be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale invesiments is
credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently recognised in the income statement
together with the deferred gain and loss.

The Bank's deferred income tax assets and liabilities are netted as the amounts are
recoverable from or due to the same tax authority.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
leaser are classified as operating leases.The Bank entered into various operating lease
agreements to rent its branches’ offices and facilities. Payments made under operating leases
are expensed on a straight-line basis over the pericd of the leases.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment
required to be made to the lesser by way of penalty is recognized as an expense in the period
in which termination takes place.

Contingent liabilities and acceptances

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Bank. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognized as a provision but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognized as a provision.

Acceptances comprise undertakings by the Bank to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers.
The Bank expects most acceptances to be settled simultaneously with the reimbursement from
the customers. Acceptances are accounted for as off-balance sheet transactions and are
disclosed as contingent liabilities and commitments.

17
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES(continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

The Bank has the following types of financial guarantee contracts: letters of credit and letters of
guarantee. These financial guarantee contracts provide for specified payments to be made to
reimburse the holder for losses incurred when the guaranteed parties default under the original
or modified terms of the specified debt instruments.

A financial guarantee is initially recognised in the financial statements at fair value on the date
the guarantee is given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank's liability under each
guarantee is measured at the higher of the initial measurement less amortisation and the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle any financial obligation arising at the balance
sheet date,

The contractual amounts of financial guarantee contracts are disclosed as off-balance sheet
items in Note 46.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits mainly include short-term employee salary, post-employment benefits, and
share plan incurred in exchange for service rendered by employees or various forms of rewards
or compensation due to severance of labour relation.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits include wages or salaries, bonus, allowances and subsidies, staff
welfare, medical insurance, work injury insurance, maternity insurance, housing funds, union
running costs and employee education costs, short-term paid absences. The employee benefits
are recognised in the accounting period in which the service has been rendered by the
employvees, and as costs of assets or expenses to whichever the employee service is
attributable. Employee benefits which are non-monetary benefits shall be measured at fair
value,

Post-employment benefits

The Bank classifies post-employment benefit plans as either defined contribution plans or
defined benefit pians. Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under
which the Bank pays fixed contributions into a separate fund and will have no obligation to pay
further contributions; and Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than
defined contribution plans. During the reporting period, the Bank 's post-employment benefits
mainly include basic pensions and unemployment insurance, both of which belong to the
defined contribution plans.

The Bank's employees participate in the defined basic pension insurance plan set up and
administered by local labour and social protection authorities. Basic pensions are provided for
monthly according to stipulated bases and proportions to local fabour and social security
institutions. When employees retire, focal labour and social security institutions have a duty to
pay the basic pension insurance to them. The amounts payable are recognised as liabilities
based on the above provisions in the accounting period in which the service has been rendered
by the employees, and as costs of assets or expenses to whichever the employee service is
attributable.

18
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES(continued)
Employee benefits(continued)
Share Based Payment

All the employees of the Bank enjoy the equity-settled stock incentive plan implemented by
the DBS Group Holding Ltd. ("DBS Group™), under which the Bank provides shares issued
by DBS Group to all the employees for exchange of services they provided. Such shares
provided are recognised in the Bank’s income statement according to the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date and amoriized over the vesting period with a
corresponding adjustment to the payable to head office account.

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made,

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES{continued)
Segment Reporting

The Bank identifies operating segments based on the internal organization structure,
management requirement and internal reporting, and then disclose segment information of
reportable segment which is based on operating segment.

An operating segment is a component of the Bank : (a) that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to
transactions); b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Bank's senior
management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance, and (c) for which discrete financial information, including the financial position, the
financial performance and cash flows, is available, Two or more operaiing segments may be
aggregated into a single operating segment if the segments have similar eccnomic
characteristics, and fulfil certain criteria.

The majority of the Bank's business activities are conducted within Shanghai, Beijing,
Guangzheu, Shenzhen and Suzhou of the PRC.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements. Estimates and judaments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Areas susceptible to changes in essential
estimates and judgments, which affect the carrying value of assets and liabilities, are set out
below. It is impracticable to determine the effect of changes to either the key assumptions
discussed below or other estimation uncertainties. It is possible that actual results may require
material adjustments to the estimates referred to below. '

Aliowance for impairment losses on loans and advances

The Bank reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment except that there are known situation
demonstrates impairment losses have occurred on quarterly basis. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Bank makes judgements as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
éstimated future cash flows from a portfolic of loans before the decrease can be identified with
an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group (e.g. payment
delinquency or default), or national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
assets in the group. Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolic when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that is not quoted in active markets is determined by using
valuation techniques. To the extent practical, cash flow models use only observable data,
however, areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations
require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect reported fair value of financial instruments.
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English transiation for reference only]

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES(continued)

Income tax

Significant estimates are required in determining the provision for income tax. There are certain
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Bank recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. In particular, the deductibility of certain
items in the PRC is subject to tax authority’s approval, mainly like the impairment allowance for
loans and advances. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred income tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In 2014, the Ministry of Finance of the PRC issued CAS 39 "Fair Value Measurement", CAS 40
"Joint arrangement”, CAS 41 "Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”, and CAS 2 "Long-Term
Equity Investments"({revised), CAS 9 "Employee Benefits" {revised), CAS 30 "Presentation of
Financial Statements” {(revised), CAS 33 "Consolidated Financial Statements” (revised) and CAS
37 "Presentation of Financial Instrument” (revised), requiring that apart from the CAS 37
"Presentation of Financial Instrument" (revised) which should be implemented for financial
statements starting from 2014, ali other standards should be applied from 1 July 2014.

The Bank has adopted the above new standards to prepare the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Some financial statement items and related financial statement items of comparative period have
been amended according to changes in accounting policies mentioned above. Besides, the
balance sheet of 1 Jan 2013 has been restated according to CAS 30 "Presentation of Financial
Statements". The impact of restatement is tabled as below. .

31 Dec 2013 1 Jan 2013
Before Restate After Before Restate After
Restatement  amount Resatement  Restatement amount Resatement
Owner's equity: :
Capital reserve 5,323,055 17,248,288 22,571,343 13,647,070 8,924,273 22,571,343
Other comprehensive
income - (17,248,288) (17,248,288) - (8924,273)  (8,924.273)
Co:_1tents and reasons of accouinting Affected disclosure Affected amount
polices change
The disclosure related to fair value have Not applicable Not applicable
been prepared according to CAS 39
"Fair Value Measurement” (revised),
related disclosure of comparative period
has not been modified according to the
revised CAS.
The disclosure related o payroll payable Not applicable Not applicable

have been prepared according to CAS 9
"Employee Benefits" (revised), related
disclosure of comparative period has
been modified according fo the revised
CAS.
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

AUTHORIZATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were authorized for issue by Board of Directors on 27 January 2015.

TAXATION

The Bank's business activities are mainly subject to the following taxes:

Tax rate
Corporate income tax 25%
Business tax 5%

The applicable corporate income tax rate for 2014 is 25% (2013: 25%).
CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

31 December 2014

Cash 56,417,839
Statutory deposit reserve with the

central bank 11,258,730,336
Excess deposit reserve with the

central bank 3,326,603,357

Tax basis

Taxable income
Taxable revenue

31 December 2013

57,328,434
11,371,243,648

3,267,677 444

14,641,751,532

14,696,149,526

According to the relevant provisions of the People’s Bank of China ("PBOC"), the mandatory
reserve ratio for customer deposits denominated in foreign currencies was 5% at 31 December

2014(31 December 2013: 5%).Such reserve is non-interest-bearing.

According to the relevant provisions of the PBOC, the mandatory reserve ratio for customer
deposits denominated in RMB was 18% at 31 December 2014(31 December 2013: 18%). RMB

deposit reserve bears interest at annual rate of 1.62% (2013: 1.62%).

These statutory reserve deposits are not available fo fund the Bank’s day-to-day operations.

DEPOSITS WITH OTHER BANKS

31‘December 2014

31 December 2013

7,444 521,030
458,268,039

139,208,637

8,041,985,706

Deposits with domestic banks - 6,179,235,349
Deposits with overseas banks 420,600,678
Deposits with overseas related parties
(Note 49(e)(3)(1)) ‘ 209,121,475
~ £,808,957,502
22
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
{English translation for reference only]

PLACEMENTS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

31 December 2014

Placements with domestic financial institutions 8,707,364,765
Placements with overseas related banks
(Note 49(e)(3Xi)) 1,162,610,000

31 December 2013

12,259,791,043

609,690,000

9,869,974 765

12,869,481,043

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

31 December 2014

Investments in debenture held for trading

31 December 2013

Bonds issued by policy banks 3,889,819,058 902,662,369
Corporate bonds 1,592,5653,549 2,675,004,853
Treasury bonds 40,229,148 9,705,594
Negotiable certificates of deposit 882,105,778 -

6,404,708,433 3,687,372 816

The fair value of the investments in debenture held for trading and the investments in equity
instrument held for trading is determined at the closing price of Shanghai Stock Exchange on the

last trading day of the year,

As at 31 December 2014, trading assets amounting to RMB 1,090,000,000 were pledged as
collateral under repurchase agreements with other banks and financial institutions. As at 31
December 2013, there were no trading assets which were pledged as collateral under

repurchase agreements with cther banks and financial institutions.
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DBS BANK {CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING
DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The following major derivative instruments are utilized by the Bank for trading purpose:

Foreign exchange forwards represent commitments to purchase/sell foreign exchanges
including unsettled spot transactions. '

Foreign exchange and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows
for another. Swaps result in an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates (for example,
fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination of all these (i.e. cross-currency interest rate swaps).
The Bank's credit risk represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts if
counterparties fail to perform their obligation. This risk is monitored on an ongoing basis with
reference to the current fair value, the notional amount of the contracts and the liquidity of the
market. To control the level of credit risk taken, the Bank assesses counterparties using the
same technigques as for its lending activities.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under which.the seller (writer) grants the
purchaser {holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell {(a put
option) at or by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of a foreign currency or a
financial instrument at a predetermined price. The seller receives a premium from the purchaser
in consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange risk. Options may be either exchange-
traded or negotiated between the Bank and a customer (OTC).

Interest rate options is a right obtained by the buyer, after payment of a premium, to buy or sell
certain interest rate instrument at certain interest rate (price) within its validity period or after
expiration.

The notional amounts of certain {ypes of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison
with instruments recognised on the balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of
future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not
indicate the Bank's exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable {liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates
or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial
assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

24



I R

[N T T

7

ey
_ y

-
.

[

—
_

-

-
_

.

-

]
1

[

3

|
-

[

L.

—
.

|
)

—
— 1

13

131

DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[English translation for reference only]

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING(continued)

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS{continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that is not quoted in active markets is determined by using
valuation techniques. To the extent practical, cash flow models use only observable data, like
interest rate and foreign currency rate, certain data like credit risk (both own and counterparty),
volatilities and correlations require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions

about these factors could affect reported fair value of financial instruments.

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank’s derivative financial instruments are as follows:

31 December 2014

Foreign exchange derivatives
Foreign exchange forward
Foreign exchange swap
Foreign exchange option
Cross-currency swap

Notional amount

22,912,647,304
344,480,502,049
24,957,242 445
2,465,5639,761

Fair value
Assels Liabilities
228,543,897 (46,117,300)
1,130,281,817 (1,355,807,294)
126,190,910 (101,130,221)
28,758,261 (13,139,841)

394,815,931,558

1,613,774,885

(1,516,194,656)

Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swap
Interest rate cap and floor

Equity derivatives

Commaodity derivatives

Total

306,436,041,254 732,687,232 (718,368,450)
62,533,332,940 109,232,678 {114,520,894)
368,969,374,194 841,819,910 {832,889,344)
2,594,674,246 40,820,578 (46,391,471)
4,743,216,422 69,610,514 (69,346,060)
771,123,196,421 2,466,125,887 (2,464,821,531)
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[English translation for reference only]

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING(continued)

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS(continued)

31 December 2013

Foreign exchange derivatives
Foreign exchange forward
Foreign exchange swap
Foreign exchange option
Cross-currency swap

Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swap
Interest rate cap and floor

179,981,916,344
62,163,255,167

1,046,091,488
171,747,001

Fair value
Notional amount Assels Liabilities
25,666,815,749 109,504,745 {243,918,861)
260,363,375,130 2,445,260,159 {2,325,267,992)
6,113,652,165 19,768,309 (6,076,127)
467,979,590 376,535 {1,636,539)
292,611,822 634 2,574,909,748 (2,576,889,519)

(1,037,217,390)
(172,108,920)

242,145,171,511

1,217,838,489

(1,209,326,310)

Equity derivatives

Commodity derivatives

Total

5,569,113,391 136,908,448 (148,363,805)
8.835,663,116 107,528,025 {107,447,241)
549,161,770,652 4,037,184,710 {4,043,036,975)
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DBS BANK {CHINA} LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English franslation for reference only]
13 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING(continued)

13.2 HEDGE ACCOUNTING

As at 31 December 2014, derivative contracts designated as hedging instruments by the Bank are

as follows:
Fair Value
notional amount Assets Liabilities
Derivatives designated as
hedging
instruments in fair value
hedges
Interest rate swaps 930,000,000 - (4,957 ,640)
As at 31 December 2013, derivative contracts designated as hedging instruments by the Bank are
as follows:
Fair Value
notional amount Assets Liabilities
Derivatives designated as
hedging
instruments in fair value
hedges
Interest rate swaps 630,000,000 ' - {19,093,334)
Fair Value Hedge

The Bank uses interest rate swaps to hedge against changes in the fair value of bonds issued.

Gain/(loss) on fair value hedges are as follows:

2014 2013
—hedging instruments 14,135,694 (19,093,334)
—hedged items: bonds issued {13,581,544) 19,044,851
Hedge ineffectiveness recognised in net frading losses 554,150 {48,483)

14 FINANCIAL ASSETS PURCHASED UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Financial assets purchased under resale
agreements designated at fair vaiue through
profit or loss, at fair value 2,018,231,539 2,857,612,839

According to the Bank’s policies, reverse repo and repo transactions conducted by the Bank's
trading desk are managed and evaluated together with other trading portfolios on fair value basis.
Therefore, the Bank designated such assets and liabilities as fair value through profit or loss.
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DBS BANK {CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[English transtation for reference only]

INTEREST RECEIVABLE

Loans and advances

Deposits and placements with financial

institutions
Trading securities
Available-for-sale securities
Deposits with the central bank
Financial assets purchased under

resale agreements designated at fair
value through profit of loss, at fair

value

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Retail loans
-Mortgage loans
-Others

Corporate loans and advances
-Loans

-Import and export bills
-Discounted hills and others

Total ioans
Individual impairment allowance
Collective impairment allowance

Total impairment allowance

Loans and advances, net

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

388,154,136 324,017,090
89,018,417 96,099,400
96,472,900 97,432,356
78,267,903 39,977,115

5,905,461 5,901,422
19,032,453 5,088,365
676,851,270 568,415,748

31 December 2014

4,724,108,320
1,5642,078,858

31 December 2013

4,371,065,555
1,818,697,831

6,266,187,178

6,190,763,386

39,389,182,384
646,422,720
6,252,713,447

34,522,097,687
481,946,387
7,681,501,668

46,288,318,551

42,585,545,742

52,654,605,729

48,778,309,128

(368,793,120)
(873,471,641)

(248,658,205)
(446,674,517)

{1,242,264,761)

(695,332,722)

51,312,240,968

48,080,976,406
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DES BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[English translation for reference only]

LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued)

Industry sector:

Consumer loans
Manufacturing

Wholesale and retail
business

Real estate

Leasing and commercial
services

Transportation
Construction

Agriculture, Hunting,
Forestry and Fishing

Mining industry
Information and technology
Hotel and restaurant

Science research and
Technical services

Resident services and
other services

Others
Total, gross

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Balance % Balance %
6,266,187.,178 12% 6,190,763,386 13%
17,540,531,544 34% 17,230,892,818 36%
14,859,860,300 28% 13,429,544 067 28%
6,336,841,807 12% 5,364,350,879 11%
2,033,377,459 4% 2,152 744,534 4%
1,152,435,364 2% 1,214,654,817 2%
1,123,308,078 2% 797,070,028 2%
701,665,528 1% 308,808,306 1%
545,320,214 1% 881,642,289 1%
511,661,520 1% 488,675,254 1%
308,275,334 1% 160,288,711 -
64,867,295 - 446,308,143 1%
38,022,995 - 158,378,402 -
1,072,151,112 2% 154,289,494 -
52,554,505,729 100% 48,776,309,128 100%
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[English translation for reference only]

LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued)

Geographic sector:

Shanghai
Beijing
Shenzhen
Guangzhou
Tianjin
Chongqing
Suzhou
Hangzhou
Others
Total, gross

By type of collateral and guarantes:

Clean loans

With guarantee only

With collateral only

With both collateral and guarantee
Total, gross

31 December 2014

24,950,491,466
8,969,671,133
4,934,862,670
3,380,756,304
3,101,314,731
2,884,182,352
1,811,155,314
1.134,601,984
1,387,469,775

31 December 2013

23,799,750,602
7,988,558,170
4,048,364,720
3,785,918,616
2,944,024,703
1,631,678,388
2,096,971,045
1,340,179,474
1,140,862,410

52,554,505,729

48,776,309,128

31 December 2014

16,476,007,431

8,660,917 421
12,217,603,597
14,200,077,280

31 December 2013

15,313,976,721

7,643,876,458
12,866,434,810
12,952,021,139

52,554,509,729

48,776,309,128
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DBS BANK {CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued)

Loans and advances past due:;

31 December 2014

Pastdueup Pastdue 90 Pastdueito Past due Total
to 90 days to 365 days 3 years over 3 years
Clt.ean loans - 4,451 320 68,491,628 10,547,801 83,490,749
With guarantee only 21,071,104 8,136,479 19,054,529 - 48,262,202
With collateral only 207,048,166 20,057,916 29,342,479 8,133,852 264,582,413
With both collateral
and guarantee 245,266,241 177,267,290 197,923,770 40,552,169 661,009,470
Total, gross 473,385,601 208,813,005 314,812,406 59,233,822 1,057,344,834
31 December 2013
Pastdue up  Past due 90 Pastdue 1to Past due over Total
to 80 days to 365 days 3 years 3 years
Clean loans 157,468 68,005,007 11,269,573 1,016,348 80,448,396
With guarantee only 8,261,087 5,391,048 9,703,711 - 23,346,746
With collateral only 170,698,745 24,981,321 20,123,361 6,765,271 222,568,698
With both collateral
and guarantee 169,754,228 137,401,178 155,269,341 4,620,000 467,044,747
Total, gross 348,861,528 235,779,454 196,365,986 12,401,619 793,408,587
Allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances:
2014
Individually Collectively Total
assessed assessed
At 1 January 248,658,205 446,674,517 695,332,722
Impairment losses for loans and
advances {Note 42) 188,335,298 426,797,124 615,132,422
Write-off (68,305,139) - (68,305,139)
Exchange difference 104,756 - 104,756
At 31 December 368,793,120 873,471,641 1,242 264,761
2013
Individually Collectively Total
assessed assessed
At 1 January 172,191,810 334,219,294 506,411,104
Impairment losses for loans and
advances (Note 42) 106,205,342 112,455,223 218,660,565
Write-off (28,746,915) - (28,746,915)
Exchange difference {952,032) - (992,032}
At 31 December 248,658,205 446,674,517 695,332,722
3



1

[

L]

(I

L1

w—J

L

DES BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

INVESTMENT SECURITIES - AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

At fair value

Corporate bonds 232,509,282 1,141,805,942
Treasury bonds 650,486,820 238,613,879
PBOC notes 99,916,986 198,621,723
Bonds issued by policy banks 2,131,647 687 147,382,372

3,114,560,775 1,727,323,016

At 31 Dec 2014, the amount of pledged financial assets held for sale is RMB 1,210,000,000. There
no amount of pledged financial assets held for sale at 31 Dec 2013.
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FIXED ASSETS
Office Computers and
equipment other electronic Total
and furniture equipment

Cost

At 1 January 2014 85,136,204 141,822,717 226,958,921
Add: Transfer-in and other additions 17,737,073 30,595,369 48,332,442
Less: Disposals/write-off {5,710,719) {13,001,001) (18,711,720)
At 31 December 2014 97,162,558 159,417,085 256,579,643
Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2014 57,774,938 82,277,616 140,052,554
- Add: Charge for the year 14,298,445 22,637,392 36,935,837
Less: Disposalsfwrite-off (3,962,383) {840,759) {4,803,152)
At 31 December 2014 68,110,990 104,074,249 172,185,239
Net book value

At 31 December 2014 29,051,568 55,342,836 84,394,404

Cost

At 1 January 2013 81,787,042 119,385,846 201,172,888

Add: Transfer-in and other additions 3,663,820 22,556,144 26,219,964

Less: Disposalsiwrite-off (314,658) (119,273) {433,931)

At 31 December 2013 85,136,204 141,822,717 226,958,921

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2013 45,743,550 58,265,091 104,008,641

Add: Charge for the

year 12,298,129 24,127,561 36,425,690

Less: Disposalsiwrite-off (266,741) -(115,036) (381,777)

At 31 December 2013 57,774,938 82,277,616 140,052,554

Net book value

At 31 December 2013 27,361,266 59,545,101 86,906,367
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DBS BANK (CHINA} LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless ctherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

LONG-TERM PREPAIDEXPENSES

As at 1 January 2014
Additions

Transfer-out
Amortization

As at 31 December 2014

As at 1 January 2013
Additions
Transfer-out
Amortization

As at 31 December 2013

Leasehold improvement Others Total
22,672,542 1,374,139 24,048,681
9,423,901 - 9,423,901
{3,644,596) - (3,644,596)
(10,202,490) {115,545) (10,318,035)
18,249,357 1,258,594 19,507,951
33,255,523 1,489,693 34,745,216
3,391,819 - 3,391,819
(2,768,986) - (2,768,986)
{11,205,814) (115,554) (11,321,368)
22,672,542 1,374,139 24,046,681

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS

Deferred income taxes is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements using tax rate of 25% (31 December 2013: 25%).

Net deferred income tax assets arose from the following temporary differences:

At beginning of year

Income statement credit (Note 43)

Available-for-sale securities

-Fair value measurement(Note 44)

At end of year

Deferred tax assets

Provision for asset impairment

Provision for other
receivables

Assets available for sale

Fair value measurement of
available-for-sale securities

Share based payment not
exercised incentive plan

Accrued expenses

2014 2013
173,421,744. 160,799,598
137,505,914 9,847,474
(5,545,590) 2774672
305,382,068 173,421,744
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Deductible Deductible
Defae;;e? tax temporary Dei;esr;iiistax temporary
S8 differences differences
197,650,914 790,603,656 101,112,666 404,450,664
5,305,836 21,223,346 - -
203,839 815,355 5,749,429 22,997,717
5429,198 21,718,790 - -
4,859,432 19,437,727 - -
91,932,849 367,731,398 71,655,194 286,620,775
305,382,068 1,221,528,272 178,517,289 714,069,156
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DBES BANK (CHINA} LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSET3(continued)

Deferred tax assets({continued)

Comprising:

Estimated recover within 1
year (including 1 year)
Estimated recover after 1 year

Deferred tax liabilities

Changes in fair value

Comprising:

Estimated recover within 1
year {including 1 year)

Estimated recover after 1 year

107,212,181 428,848,725 77,200,784 308,803,137
198,169,887 792,679,647 101,316,505 405,266,019

305,382,068 1,221,528,272 178,517,289 714,069,156

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Deferred Taxable Taxable
tax temporary Dﬁ;egirlﬁic;fx temporary
liabilities differences differences
- ‘ - (5,095,545) {20,382,180)
- - (5,095,545) {20,382,180)
- - (5,095,545) (20,382,180)
The net balances of deferred tax assets and liabilities afier offsetting are as follows:
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
305,382,068 173,421,744

Deferred tax assets, net
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DBES BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[English translation for reference only]

OTHER ASSETS

Rental deposits
Receivables from related parties

{Note 49(e)(3Xiii))
Settlement receivables from customers -
Provision for settlement receivables from
customers
Net client settlement receivables from

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
94,664,174 46,341,547
36,295,384 28,496,020

190,694,286 23,903,901

(21,223,346) -

customers 169,470,940 23,903,901
Prepaid expenses 22,997,604 19,662,245
Unsettled bonds - 9,803,680
Others 7,850,998 7,087,808
331,279,100 135,295,201
31 December 31 December
2013 2014
Settlement receivables from Increase in Decrease in
customers 23,903,901 current year current year 190,694,286
Minus: Provisicn for
settlement receivables
from customers - {21,223,346) - (21,223,346)
23,903,901 169,470,940
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DES BANK [CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

DUE TO OTHER BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

31 Decemnber 2014

31 December 2013

Deposits from domestic banks 69,792,584 51,544,563
Deposits from domestic related parties
{Note 49(e)(3)(iv)) 237,018,501 321,582,094
Deposits from overseas related parties
(Note 49(e)}{3)(iv)) 3,238,720,417 124,480,255
3,545,531,602 497,606,912

PLACEMENTS FROM OTHER BANKS

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

4,472,891,800

6,183,198,300

Placements from domestic banks 3,982,1567,000

Placements from overseas related parties

{Note 49(e)(3)}iv)) 4,920,621,114
8,002,778,114

10,656,090,100

FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

31 December 2014

Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements designated at fair value
through profit or loss, at fair vatue 2,249,084,545

31 December 2013

According to the Bank’s policies, reverse repo and repo transactions conducted by the Bank’s trading
desk are managed and evaluated together with other trading portfolios on fair value basis. Therefore,
the Bank designated such assets and liabilities as fair value through profit or loss.
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DUE TC CUSTOMERS

31 December 2014

At amortized cost

31 December 2013

6,486,194,173
23,188,002,099
1,703,629,511
3,274,045,284
29,650,385,161
5,334,139,075

Corporate current deposits 8,775,268,469
Corporate time deposits 22,139,305,361
Retail current deposits 1,442,902,175
Retail time deposits 2,586,736,424
SIPs sold to corporate customers 31,342,603,043
SIPs sold to retail customers 2,068,166,531

68,354,982,003

69,637,395,303

SIPs designated at fair value through
profit or loss

SIPs sold to retail customers 85,315,459 83,646,795
85,315,459 83,646,795
68,440,297 ,462 69,721,042,098
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

{English translation for reference only]

PAYROLL AND WELFARE PAYABLE

Short-term employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

TAXES PAYABLE

Income tax payable

Business taxand surcharges

Withholding corporate tax

Withholding individual income tax and others

INTEREST PAYABLE

Due to customers

Bonds issued

Due to / placements with other banks and
financial institutions

Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

140,424,133 116,201,624
5,061,320 4,333,141
145,485,453 120,534,665

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

77,494,455 12,666,801
71,899,499 56,326,301
34,283,854 22,692,483
21,881,617 28,883,252
205,559,525 120,568,837

31 December 2014

957,372,970
84,154,795

10,966,895

389,633

31 December 2013

1,189,396,469
84,154,795

6,243,231

1,052,884,223

1,279,794,495
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

BONDS ISSUED

31 December 2014

RME financial bonds 2,001,569,222

31 December 2013

1,875,960,214

On 4 May 2012, the Bank issued a financial bond with notional amount of RMB 500 million in the
PRC inter-bank market. The bond bears interest at annual rate of 4.75% and its maturity date is 7

May 2015,

On 4 Jan 2013, the Bank issued a financial bond with notional amount of RMB1,500 million in the
PRC inter-bank market. The bond bears interest at annual rate of 4.65% and its maturity date is 7 Jan

2016.

OTHER LIABLITIES

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Accrued expenses 152,987,568 99,817,754

Payable to overseas related parties
(Note 49(e)(3){iv}) 171,426,769 87,192,617
Settlements payable 162,883,320 84,577,323
Unearned commission income 32,832,944 9,870,954
Others ) 10,803,041 45,267,700
530,933,642 326,726,348

PAID-IN CAPITAL

31 December 2014

Registered and fully paid by DBS Bank 6,300,000,000

31 December 2013

6,300,000,000

The registered and paid-in capital is RMB 6.3 billion as of 31 December 2014, which has been verified
by Ernst&Young Hua Ming CPAs Company Limited and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs

Limited Company.
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENBDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

CAPITAL SURPLUS

Upon approval from the Board of Direclors, capital surplus, other than those relating to receipts of
donated non-cash assets and equity investments held, can be used to increase capital. Capital
surplus arising from receipts of donated non-cash assets and equity investments can only be used to
increase capital after the donated assets or investments have been disposed.

31 December 2013 31 December 2014
Transfer of capital
surplus recognised
under the previous
accounting system 22,571,343 22,571,343
31 December 2012 31 December 2013
Transfer of capital
surplus recognised
under the previous
accounting system 22,571,343 22,571,343
SURPLUS RESERVE
Reserve Fund 31 Becember 2014 31 December 2013
At beginning of year 184,048,901 159,943,560
Current year addition 35,257 207 24,105 341
At end of year 219,306,108 184,048,901

In accordance with the Article 167 of Company Law of PRC and the Company's Articles of
Association, appropriations from net profit. should be made to the Reserve Fund, after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years, and before profit distributions to the parent. The percentages to
be appropriated to the Reserve Fund are determined by the Board of Directors of the Bank, but should
not be less than 10% of net income after tax before accumulated Reserve Fund reaching 50% or
more of the registered capital.Upon approval from the Board of Directors, the Reserve Fund can be
used to offset accumulated losses or to increase capital.
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

GENERAL RISK RESERVE

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
At beginning of year 805,900,000 587,500,000
Current year addition 66,800,000 218,400,000
At end of year 872,700,000 805,900,000

Pursuant to Circular Caijin No.49 issued by MOF in 2005, banks and certain other financial institutions
in the PRC, are required to maintain adequate allowances for impairment losses against their risk
assets. In addition, a general risk reserve should be established through the appropriation of retained
earnings. This general risk reserve should form part of the owner's equity of financial institutions. As a
guiding principle, the balance of general risk reserve should not be less than 1% of the aggregate
amount of all risk assets. On 17 April 2012, MOF issued Circular Caijin No.20, which supersedes
Circutar Caijin No.49 and raises the minimum level of general risk reserve to 1.5% of aggregated
amount of all risk assets, which should be fulfilled in the next five years since July 2012.

On 27 January 2015, the directors approved the appropriation to the Bank's general risk reserve of
RMB 72.5 million, in accordance with Circular Caijin No.20 issued in 2012,

UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS
On 27 January 2015, the directors approved the appropriation to the Bank's general risk reserve

amounting to RMB 72.5 million in accordance with Circular Caijin No.20 issued in 2012. The general
risk reserve after this appropriation amounts to RMB 945.2 million.
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DES BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[English translation for reference only]

NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income:
Loans and advances

Due from other banks and financial institutions

Deposits with the central bank

Trading securities

Investment securities — available- for-sale

Financial assets purchased under resale
agreements

Others

Interest expense:
Due to other banks and financial institutions
Due to customers*
Bonds issued
Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements
Others

Net interest income
Comprising

Interest income for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Interest income for financial assets not at fair
value through profit or loss

Interest expense for financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

Interest expense for financial liabilities not at
fair value through profit or loss

2014 2013
3,195,231,802 2,602,566,232
770,223,735 910,118,187
198,792,458 202,463,108
317,390,237 189,013,944
80,952,437 118,959,746
142,204,258 134,161,174
907,800 -
4,705,702,727 4,157,282,391

{142,268,105) (73,378,038)
(2,395,366,350) (2,483,481,373)
(96,661,036) {94,936,807)
(65,775,220) (52,472,997)
(5412,072) -
{2,695,482,783) {2,704,269,215)

2,010,219,944

1,453,013,176

541,454,732
4,164,247,995
{60,381,097)

(2,635,101,686)

442,134,864
3,715,147,627
(29,512,298)

(2,674,756,917)

2,010,219,944

1,453,013,176

*See note 25 with respect to SIPs (Structured Investment Products).
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DBES BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2014 2013
Fee and commission income
Settlement and clearing fees 275,918,010 231,728,180
Credit related fees and commissions 125,099,115 137,808,854
Cthers 64,884,052 47,726,703
465,901,177 417,263,737
Fee and commission expense
Settlement and clearing fees, brokerage
expenses {53,450,427) (35,127,780
Net fee and commission income ' 412,450,750 382,135,947
INVESTMENT GAINS
2014 2013
Financial assets purchased under
resale/repurchase agreements 12,335,849 69,805,655
Trading assets 116,743,869 {24,400,270)
investment securities —available-for-sale - 633,185 -
129,712,903 45,405,385
FAIR VALUE {LOSSES)/GAINS
2014 2013
Net unrealized (losses)/gains on financial assets
purchased under resale/repurchase agreements (17,872,215) 11,882,521
Net unrealized (losses)/gains on trading assets (12,423,406) 5,270,112
Net unrealized (losses)/gains on derivative
instruments {12,335,849) 378,139
(42,631,470) 17,530,772
NET GAINS FROM FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS
2014 2013
Net gains from foreign exchange and derivatives
transactions 449,450,294 230,778,320

The amount represents net realized gains on foreign exchange and derivative transactions. The

derivative transactions inciuding mainly foreign exchange and interest rate derivatives.
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DES BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[English translation for reference only]

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and bonus

Social insurance and other welfare benefits

Share-based compensation plan
Telecommunications and computers
Rental and utilities

Depreciation and amortization
Travelling expenses

Business entertainment expenses
Staff training expenses

Others

ASSET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

impairment losses on loans and advances

{Note 16(5))
Recovery of loans previously written-off

Impairment losses on other assets

INCOME TAX

" Current income tax
Deferred income tax {Note 20)

2014

764,824,593
197,657,914
19,374,825
218,329,363
189,058,793
47,253,872
26,531,424
9,731,664
5,731,404
149,445,593

2013

648,639,857
164,997,932
14,252,282
182,566,424
171,805,681
47,747,058
22,728,264
11,623,720
5,461,793
143,047,681

1,627,939,445

1,412,870,692

2014 2013
615,132,422 218,660,565
(20,469,867) (33,309,186)

21,223 346 -
615,885,901 185,351,379

2014 2013

252,653,268 93,579,055
(137,505,914) (9,847,474)
115,147,354 83,731,581

The actual income tax expense differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

standard tax rate of 25%:

Profit before income tax

Income tax calculated at 25% (2013: 25%)

Annual tax filing differences
Net effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes

2014 2013
467,719,424 324,784,993
116,929,856 81,196,248

(1,782,502) (370,029)
- 2,905,362
115,147,354 83,731,581
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DES BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

44  OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(1) Other comprehensive income, its impact on income tax and the status of reclassifying to profit or joss
2014
Amount bef
out;xbe ore Income tax Net after tax
Other comprehensive income items which will be
reciassified subsequently to profit or loss
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets 11,505,273 2,876,318 8,628,955
Less: Reclassification of other comprehensive income to
profit or loss {10,677,089) (2,668,272} (8,007,817)
Total other comprehensive income 22,182,362 5,545,580 16,636,772
2013
Amount before tax Income tax Net after tax
Other comprehensive income items which will
not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss
Gains or losses arising frem changes in fair value
of available-for-sale financial assets (14,860,936) (3,865,234) (10,895,702)
Less: Reclassification of other comprehensive
income to profit or loss (3,562,250} {890,583) {2,671,687)
Total cther comprehensive income (11.098,686) (2.774.671) (8,324,015)
(2) Reconciliation of other comprehensive income
. . i
Gains or losses arising Total other i
from changes in fair value comprehensive income

of available-for-sale
financiai assets

31 December 2012

8,924,273 8,924,273
Movements for the year ended 31 December 2013
8,324,015 8,324,015
17,248,288 .
31 December 2013 17,248,288 i
Movements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(16,636,772) (16,636,772}
31 December 2014
611,516 611,516
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[English translation for reference only]

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following

balances:

Cash (Note 8)

Balances with the PBOC other than restricted
reserve deposits (Note 9)

Deposits with other banks with original terms less
than three months from acquisition date

Placements with financial institutions with original
terms less than three months from acquisition date

Cash flows from operating activities

Notes

Net profit
Adjusted by:
Impairment charge for asset losses 42
Depreciation and amortization 41
Interest income for investment securities -

available-for-sale
Losses on disposal of fixed assets and

other long-term assets
Interest expenses of bonds issued
Fair value losses/(gains) 39
Deferred income tax assets 43

Increase in operating receivables
Increage /(Decrease) in operating payables

2014

56,417,839
3,326,603,357
6,408,957 ,504

3,217,610,000

2013

57,328,434
3,267,577,444
6,001,985,707

3,135,086,851

13,009,588,700

12,461,988,438

2014
352,572,070

636,355,768
47,263,872

{80,952,437)

8,897,721
96,661,036
42,631,470

(137,505,914}
(1,383,591,393)
2,350,686,706

2013
241,053,412

218,660,565
47,747,058

(118,959,746)

52,154
94,936,807
(17,530,772)
(9,847,474)
(2,525,813,741)
(4,057 ,549,611)

Net cash provided from/{used in)
operating activities

1,933,008,899

{6,127,251,348)

Net increasel{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Less: cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

13,009,588,700

12,461,988,436

12,461,988,436

15,760,735,619

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

547,600,264

(3,298,747,183)
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Off-balance sheet items

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Letters of credit issued 24,758,826,200 28,184,263,789
Standby letter of credit 9,265,044,609 5,288,506,177
Letters of guarantee issued 1,456,592,403 2,298,840,037
Irrevocable loan commitment 1,914,115,400 1,167,745,235
Bank acceptances 1,845,711,700 1,272,656,919
Accepted letters of credit 9,709,888 202,641,982
39,250,000,200 38,414,654,139

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases in respect of office
premises are as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Within 1 year 179,341,483 148,901,055
Over 1 year less than 2 years . 135,197,811 78,462 409
Over 2 year less than 3 years 106,843,038 51,150,811
Over 3 years 53,525 751 30,049,008

474,908,183 308,563,283

Legal proceedings

At 31 December 2014, there was no significant legal proceeding against the Bank (31
December 2013; nil).

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2014, the Bank has no significant capital commitments which require
separate disclosure (31 December 2014: nii).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

At 30 January 2015, there were no subsequent events after the balance sheet date which
requires additional disclosure.

46



Ly

£FE'e6L'/S - 6.5'90% 085 /71 Zizcel JZE08y') €IE08.°02 S0Z'0/1°€E 211’6991 ainypuadxs {ejde)
Z/8'S5T Y - 989°966 G ZGE Gae #69'028'C ZIGE0E 9Z1'812'S SlLr'Esr'IE £89°GFLL uo|jezniowe pue uoyeidaIda
106'688°G19 - vZLVOLL0E 8929V €T 098’ LP0'8 L 216'18275 929'69 FEL ZOL'€90'95¢E oyeeeT | 59850
ypaso 101 abeyo Juswljedw)
ammnmvmnmmm”mmv 1SS 8L GEG VL (964 €29 822 ZLI0L 8ol arae) (022 BB FIES) (8ch v eel6) (192901 Pz9'LL) (Be9'lor'ez.'2s) (1£8'69€'Z05'6) salgel] [ejoL
(zov'26zZ'0vb'g9) - (reo'zel'vio'e) (L1€'155'822) (bez'zPo'ziL's)  (BR®'Z/O'Ib'S) (Zry'ece'sse'LL) (9eD'ELy'09L'Es) (L08'Sop'h) s1awojsna o} anp spsodag
%xmomnmmo“mm :mm R/ GEG FL) LE6Z/ZC LEDEl CBOEPLOEL'E  J09'LbSP9L'S  88/'869'v65 0L PES'SPB'SIP'CL L6Y'6S0'0LL'YS  90.L1/8TI8TTL $}95SE [2]0]
898'0F2 CIE LS grz'PeE'SEL',  Z8E'RLe'teD's  SEEZBS'IeC'S SBL'09V'SS'v  9vS'yIS'ski's  20'680'/6Z'¥Z  000'C00'0C JaU 'SSOUBADE PUE SUBOT
eyl o - Z/06.L'6FL BZE'96Y'LS 696'046'2/ ££/'669'201 ZESVLL'OEL 9/G'6E]'GTE (o8’ 221 ¥0v) xe} 210524 (ssoj)piord [ej0),
PBL'6ZP'G - ZS6'6152 LLL'00L (60e’ese) (/g6'65¢) (ooz'/s1) {ogs'ezy) 656'900'% {sasso|)fatuoou|
L _ Bunelado-uopn
amw. Eo.Bv AN (09's01'asl)  (211'c69'99) {229'002'€Z)1) (scs'siv'oez)  (Zeg'ber'coe)  (agL'peo'sze’l)  (£9/4'168°807) sasuadxe BuperedQ
Z18'029'9e5 - LB6'692°02 Ssre'zIVIE 0eL'022'YT s Th NN A 9/y'51¥'65 LWO'GL0'PSE LOE'BSE'Y awoeoul JaYl0
05.'0sF 2Ly - $62'908'29 €0L'¥LSVE ¥1L.'v68'6Z 08F'Z8¥'8S 9/0'011'00L 6LEPRY'OEL {oee'L} 3woouy
UQISSILLLOD pue 33 JoN
cmxomv.me - {Los'z€2) Fzr'c9) {vorve) {1L08°5vE) 192D (82’187 2a) {oc2'1) sasuadxe UoISSILIWOD pue 284
221'106'6op - S62'ErL'E9 [ZG'989'Y2 811'686'6¢ 182°828'85 888'/£€'001 895'605'88 1 - SLWOL] UOISSILILIOS pue 294
3&_.@ LZ'0L0'T - CPP'EB0BEC 186 VOFZOL T A I 0.5'828 /22 £25'9/1'92€ pig'ecy'iol’t  (EPE0SI'E0T) awosu] Jsa1s3ul 39N
Amm\._mmﬂmmo_u 682261 9rz 7L (0oL'ssl'el8’L) (209'400'/5S) sz’ ZZ0'181'1)  ([e6eBLP0S6's) (ovy LpbZese Besslosals)  (121'/26'989) asuadxa jsasu|
122'204'50L'Y  (BEL'ZSL'SPT'YL) 209'vPE'ZS0'C  €85'00K'659 Z69'6EY'RZE' L £9B'/PI'ZIL'ZT  B96'L19'8IB'T  6/8'0/0'0EE6  842'9/T'S8P Stuoou| 1SS

12qWsoe
[ejol uoljELIWI| g S0 ufuel] neyzBueng usyzusysg Bulfieg leybueyg aolo pesy ﬂwwm R _“m £ mcM“_._ MM

NOLLYWHO4NI INFWD3AS 8

[Ajuo sauala)al o} uone|suel) ysibug]

(poiE)s asmIaylo SSajUN gINY Ul passaldxa sjunowe |iy)
+1.0Z ¥349W3034 1€ 3ANd ¥Y3IA gHL J0d
SINIANILYLS TVIONYNId IHL O1 SALON

q3aLinnr (¢NIHD) ¥MNvE sad

S [ S [ U Sy U s Y s GOV s U N SR S (NS S SNV [ SO B SV [ S

Oy 4 T U



8y

16.'2p8'92 - 8£/'292'1 ENE T 8B0'€0Z Org'zZse 6.1'620'L £6/'60L'€T 8G'SET anypusdxa |ejde)

8C0'L¥L' Iy - ¥¥E'EED' £80'ssy g51'28k's ££0'L22'E o0Z'06E'E GOE'SFE'0E [ ETATA uojeziucWe pue uoljeaaideq
6/8'l5g's8l - 88t'g8y'sE art'ole'd JZ¥e0L'tL Zelv'rieoe LLP'LES'EE GV I6L'FL - $8850]

1palo o} ableyo JuauLieduwt

@vm”omm” :m”mmv JEG/JO9BB EL (GB9/66G186) (0LL LVE FBBZ) (295 26 ¥28G) (ECEEPR'OIES) ey ek eB0'Ll) (OPZ'Z06'085'YS) (BCZ'E0O'Y8L'6) sapinqel jejoL
(960'ZF0'12L'69) - (Go5'FrE'ZLL' L) (OS'69R'6/0'L) (951 16L'EsE's) (cvB'enz'ops's) (Eve'cas'zes's) {(GBS'csR'S0SZE) - s1BLWo}SNo 0} aNnp siisodaQ
mo\.“mt“\.mmnmm (/£5'129'866°C)) 8v2'T.S'6LF'0L ¥BCOCK LBO'E 086'8S2°96L'0 E2¥'coc LD'OL  €/5'6LA'A08°)1 19V'8ES'6/Z'9S  1B0'BLE'6L0EL 5JasSE [EJ0
o0r'9.6'080'8F - 969'G/6'CPL'e  €Z9'VIZ'POB'T OLS'2Z0'IL'E  GEB'TYE'VEG'E  0ITTLL'I06°L  9ZS'ES0'08F'EZ 12U 'SROUBAPE PUE SUBOT

€66'F8L e - 9z.'189'vG gzL'IPl'89 8/¥'998'0v 981205 SE Z99'156'9L1 z97'62Z'S8 {6bF'285'91) Xejy
aloyaq (ssofljjyord |eloL

102218 - 9B6'VET L ££8°1LG 0es' L. /00'v8e 168°LY (ee1'949) (ooo'oss) {sass0])/awoau
leor'ana! Bunesado-uon
Gmﬁmmm_m% U - (ros'ore'eol) (Zrb'ost'vy)  (0L2'186'80L)  (LL1'leg'sel)  (eee'DZe'202)  (beL'sci'2le)  (S/0'98B'¢9t) sasuadxe BuieladQ
yOG'v0l'g62 - £16'9zL'1Z 9//'150'6 ¥15'6£9'9) ZEO'SEY'OF 09s'0LF'06 OL¥'80¥'602 (196'c95'/9) aweaul 18I0

/¥E'eEL'Z8E - £01'cZ8'29 B0.'GBa'PT  1ZLTYCES 960'020'2E goL'cob'eL 618'269'sh) {r22'V) awosu)
UOISSILLWICD pue 3d] BN
{06L°221°G€E) - {r2t'285) (zrs'col) {zeD'LLL) {z65'801) (66£'5/2) (Lir'glg'ee) FL2'1) sasuadxa
o uoIssiWLICD pue 334
leLe’sy - LiG0Lr'E9 0SZ'L00'SE BLY'ELP'eE §99'g8Y' L€ 19g'8el'eL 9EZ' LIZ'6L1 - 3LOoU| UOISSILILIOD pUE 39
gll'Elo'esk' L - 09t /p8°BEL Lee'eiz'el  LLPvEP'Pe 891'961" ¥ 0.0'£04'00¢ 6v6'CPE LF9 108'GHS'GhL awioouy Jsa423Ul 19N
{Clz6oc¥0L'2) GOG 160G, L (0BC BIZ 0LY) (9E9GICEEl) (€/epsc Lic) (IEOSL'LWS) (P92 8iST.S) (8rizervree) (<08 HpL'98L) asuadxa jselall|
Lee'zee'/GL'y  (S0G'160'852°)) Ov2'SLL'GYS /BB'EGS'LIZ  069'8/1'G9E  SBY'9ZE'BES PEL'SBT'S L 160'9ZF'T66' £99'/92'7¢E WO ISR}
[e1o], uoheuILyg 3 g ulluerp noyzfuens usyzuaysg Bulieg jeybueyg 3010 pedl £10¢ Jsquedeq |LE

popua Jeak sy} Jod

{penuRUED)NOILYINYO4NI ANIWNDIS 8

[Ajuo sau2iaja1 Jof uone|suely ysibuz]

(paje)s @sIMIBU0 SSajUN gy Ut pessaldxe sjunowe [iy)
102 Y39W303A 1£ A3AN3 HVY=3A JHL ¥O0d
SINIWILVLS TYIONYNId SHL O1 310N

a3t (vNIHD) MNVYE sad

Y [ A [ S N S N R R SN AU (N SRS GO N S N S N SHANS BN SNV S VD B SN B S




-

(2

-
_J

-

3

-
|
J—}

I IS R B

[

{'A‘MJ

.

(7

[

—
e

48

49

(@)

(b)

{c)

DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

SEGMENT INFORMATION(continued)

Geographical Information

The Bank's revenue from external customers is mainly from mainland China for 2014 and 2013.
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, all non-current assets of the Bank are located in mainland

China.
RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

Related parties who control the Bank or are controlled by the Bank

Relations Chairman of
Name of Registered with the the Board
entity location Main business  bank Registered capital
DES Bank Singapore Banking and Parent SGD 22,096 Peter Seah
Ltd. financial company million Lim Huat

service

DBS Group Holding Ltd., incorparated in Singapore, is the ultimate parent company of the Bank.

Registered capital of related parties which control the Bank or are centrolled by the Bank and their

changes

Name of entity 31 December 2013 Change

DBES Bank Ltd. SGD 17,096 Million SGD 5,000 Million

31 December 2014

SGD 22,096 Million

Shares of interest of related parties who control the Bank or are controlled by the Bank and their

changes
Name of entity 31 December 2013 Change 31 December 2014
Amount % Amount % Amount %
DBS Bank Ltd. RMB 100 - - RMB 100
6.3 Billion 6.3 Billion
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS(continued)

Nature of related parties which do not control the Bank or are controlied by the Bank
Related Entity

Names of related parties Relationship with the Bank
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
DBS Bank(Taiwan) Limited

DBS Vickers (Hong Keng) Limited
DBS Asia Capital Ltd

Company controlled by the parent company
Company contrelled by the parent company
Company controlled by the parent company
Company controlled by the parent company

Related Person

The term key management refer to people who have the power and responsibility to directly or
indirectly plan, direct or control the business of our group, including but not limited to directors
and senior management.

Related party transactions

Pricing policy

The major transactions entered into by the Bank with its related parties are inter-bank
borrowing and lending, and derivative transactions. The terms of inter-bank borrowing and
lending, and derivative transactions with related parties follow commercial terms arranged in
the ordinary course of the Bank’s business. The service charges were either based on the
actual cost incurred by related parties with no mark-up or actual cost plus a mark-up. Majority
of service charges were based on actual cost plus a mark-up of 7%.

Significant related party transactions

(i) Interest income

2014 2013
DBS Bank Ltd. 272,321 265,449
DBS Bank {Hong KongjLimited _ 12,972 -
285,293 265,449

(ii) Interest expense

2014 2013
DBS Bank Ltd. 33,898,234 33,433,196
DBS Bank (Hong Kong)Limited 623,834 687,267
DBS Bank(Taiwan) Limited 163,875 25,302
34,685,943 34,145,765
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DES BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS(continued)

Related party transactions (continued)
Significant related party transactions (continued)

(iii} Service charge

2014 2013
DBS Bank Ltd. 77,443,270 72,222,880
DBS Bank (Hong Kong)Limited 8,708,124 10,647,607
86,151,394 82,870,487

The service charge is mainly related to technology service support provided by related parties.

Balances with related parties
()Due from other financial institution
31 December 2014

DBS Bank Lid.
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

31 December 2013

1,227,916,753 630,602,493
143,814,722 109,254,144
1,371,731,475 748,886,637

(i)Interest receivable
31 December 2014

DBS Bank Ltd. 3,875

31 December 2013

1,016

(iiyOther receivables

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

DBS Bank Ltd. 36,295,384 25,679,002
DEBS Bank (Hong Kong)Limited - 2,817,018
36,295,384 28,496,020

(iv} Deposits / placements from

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

DBS Bank Ltd. 8,388,134,789 6,564,088,438
DBS Bank {Hong Kong) Limited 7,124,302 7,765,823
DBS Vickers (Hong Kong) Limited 53,780 -
DBS Asia Capital Lid 302,664 -
DBS Bank (Taiwan) Limited 744,497 57,406,388

8,396,360,032 6,629,260,649
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[English translation for reference only]

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS({continued)

Related party transactions(continued)

Balances with related parties(continued)

(v) Interest payable

DBS Bank Lid.
DBS Bank {Hong Kong)Limited
DBS Bank(Taiwan) Limited

(vi) Other payables

DBS Bank Ltd.
DBS Bank (Hong Keng) Limited

(vii) Derivative transactions

DBS Bank Lid,
DBS Bank {Hong Kong} Limited

DBS Bank Ltd.
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

31 December 2014

8,470,736

31 December 2013

33,433,196

27,414 687,267

96 8,753
3,498,246 34,127,216

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

168,355,489 81,672,519
3,071,280 5,520,098
171,426,769 87,192,617

31 December 2014
Notional amount Fair value

42,059,222 745
19,043,031,909

(158,371,932)
(72,772,045)

61,102,254,654

(231,143,977)

31 December 2013
Notional amount

44,624,625,529
7,766,195,219

Fair value

{337,640,298)
(36,532,383)

52,390,820,748

(374,172,681)
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS(continued)

Related party transactions(continued)
Balances with related parties(continued)
(viii) Standby letter of credit

31 December 2014

DBS Bank Ltd. 6,434,025,017
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited 1,036,706,231

DBS Bank(Taiwan} Limited 30,000,000

31 December 2013

4,196,375,732
920,003,645
7,000,000

7,500,731,248

5,123,379,378

(ix) Letiers of gurantee issued

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

DBS Bank Lid. 222,878,307 374,405,000
DBS Bank {Hong Kong) Limited 8,444,220 46,489,222
231,322,527 420,894,222

Emoluments for directors, supervisors and senior management

The key management include directors, supervisors and senior management persennel.

Salary and welfare
Share incentive plan

53

2014

38,028,811
18,753,634

56,782,445
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk governance

Under the Bank’s risk governance framework, the Board of Directors, through the Board
Risk Management Committee (‘China BRMC’), oversees the establishment of robust
enterprise-wide risk management policies and processes, and sets risk limits to guide risk-
taking within the Bank.

Management is accountable to the Board for ensuring the effectiveness of risk
management and adherence fo the risk appefite limits. To provide risk oversight, senior
management committees are mandated to focus on specific risk areas. These oversight
committees are China Risk Executive Committee (Risk Exco) and its cne-down
committees, including China Credit Risk Committee (CCRC), China Market & Liquidity Risk
Committee (CMLRC), as well as China Operational Risk Committee (CORC).

On a day-to-day basis, business units have primary responsibility for risk management. In
partnership with the business units, independent control functions provide senior
management with a timely assessment of key risk exposures and the associated
management responses. These units also recommend risk appetite and control limits for
approval in fine with the risk management framework, as well as supplemented policies and
procedures to identify, measure, analyse, and control risk of the bank.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises out of the Bank's daily activities in various areas of business — lending to
retail, corporate and institutional customers; trading activities such as foreign exchange,
derivatives and debt securities; and settlement of transactions. Credit risk is one of the
most significant measurable risks faced by the Bank.

Lending exposures are typically represented by the notional value or principal amount of
on-halance sheet financial instruments. Financial guarantees and standby letters of credit,
which represent undertakings that the Bank will make payments in the event that a
customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties, carry the same credit risk as loans
even though they are contingent in nature. Pre-setflement Credit Exposures (PCE) for
trading and securities transactions is measured taking into account collateral and netting
arrangements. Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the counterparty’s failure to perform
its obligation- after the Bank has performed its ‘obligation under an exchange of cash or
securities.

Credit Risk Management

The Bank’s framework for credit risk management includes the followings:

Policies

The Bank localized Group Core Credit Risk Paolicy, by taking account of the local laws,
regulations. The Core Credit Risk Policy sets forth the principles by which the Group
conducts its credit risk management and contro! activities. This policy, supplemented by a

number of operational policies, ensures consistency in credit risk underwriting across the
Bank.
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT(continued)
Credit risk {continued)

Credit risk measurement

Loans and advances and off balance exposures

The Bank uses internal rating system adopted by the group to identify, out of the 11 broad
ratings in the system, the risk rating of the corporate borrowers. At the same time, the Bank
also assigns loan grade to each facility for both corporate and retail borrowers under a five
grade asset classification system to manage the quality of its loan portfolio. Such
classification system is based on “the Guidance on Credit Risk Classification” ("the
Guidance”) issued by CBRC. Under the Bank’s own system and the CBRC Guidance, the
Bank classifies its credit assets and off-balance sheet credit exposures inio five categories,
which are namely pass, special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss. The last three
categories are also classified as “non-performing credit assets”.

The core definition of the Bank's credit asset classification is as follows:

Pass: The borrower is able to fulfil the contractual obligations, and there is no
uncertainty that principal and interest can be paid on time.

Special Mention: The borrower is able to make current due payments, but there exist some
indications that may have negative impact on the borrower's fuiure
payments.

Substandard:  The borrower's repayment ability has been in doubt and its normal income
cannot repay the loan principal and interest in full. Losses may be
incurred by the Bank, even with the enforcement of guarantees and

collateral.
Doubtful: The borrower cannot repay the principal and the interest in full. Significant
' losses will be incurred even with the enforcements of guarantees and

collateral.
Loss: After taking into consideration all possible recovery actions and necessary

legal procedures, the principal and interest cannot be collected or only a
very small portion of principal and interest can be collected.

Traded products and securities

Counterparty risk that may arise from traded products and securities is viewed similarly to
loan exposures and included under the Bank’s overall lending limits to counterparties.
Issuer Default Risk that may arise from traded products and securities are generally
measured and monitored via limits set by the Bank.

Loans to other banks and financial institutions

The Bank reviews and monitors the credit risk of individual financial institutions on regular

basis. Limits are placed for each individual bank or non-banking financial institution which
has business relationship with the Bank.
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DES BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless ctherwise stated)
iEnglish translation for reference only]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Collateral

Where possible, the Bank takes collateral as a secondary recourse to the borrower.
Collateral includes cash, marketable securities, properties, trade receivables, inventory and
equipment and other physical and financial collateral. The Bank has put in place policies to
determine the eligibility of collateral for credit risk mitigation, which include requiring specific
collaterals to meet minimum operational requirements in order io be considered as effective
risk mitigants. Collateral taken for financial market operations is marked to-marketon a
mutually-agreed period with the respective counterparties.

Collateral taken for commercial banking is revalued periodically ranging from daily to
annually, depending on the type of collateral.

Other Risk Mitigants
The Bank also uses guarantees as credit risk mitigants. While the Bank may accept

guarantees from any counterparty, it sets internal thresholds for considering guarantors to
be eligible for credit risk mitigation.
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[English translation for reference only]
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

Deposits with other banks
Placements with financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Derivative assets
Financial assets purchased under resale

agreements

Interest receivable

Loans and advances

Investment securities — available-for-sale
Other financial assets

Sub-fotal

Letters of credit issued
Standby leiter of credit
Letters of guarantee issued
Irrevocable loan commitment
Bank acceptances

Letters of credit confirmation

Sub-total
Total

31 December
2014

6,808,957,502
9,869,974,765

6,404,708,433
2,466,125,887

2,018,231,539
676,861,270
51,312,240,968
3,114,560,775
308,281,496

31 December
2013

8,041,985,706
12,869,481,043

3,687,372,816
4,037,184,710

2,857,612,839
569,415,748
48,080,976,406
1,727,323,916
115,632,956

82,979,832,635

81,886,986,140

24,768,826,200
9,265,044,609
1,456,592,403
1,914,115,400
1,845,711,700
9,709,888

28,184,263,789
5,288,506,177
2,298,840,037
1,167,745,235
1,272,656,919
202,641,982

39,250,000,200

38,414,654,139

122,229,932,835

120,301,640,279

The above table represents a worse-case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Bank at
31 December 2014, without taking account of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements attached. For on-balance-sheet assets, the exposures set out above are
based on net carrying amounts as reported in the balance sheet.

As shown above, 62% of the total on-balance-sheet maximum exposure is derived from
loans and advances to customers (31 December 2013: 59%).
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DBES BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
{All amounts expressed in RMB unless ctherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Placements with financial institutions

Neither past due nor impaired

31 December 2014

Less:allowance for impairment losses
Placements with financial institutions, net

Loans and advances

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired

Impaired
Total

Less:allowance for impairment losses

Net

9,869,974,765

31 December 2013

12,869,481,043

9,865,974,765

12,869,481,043

31 December 2014

51,283,117,028

443,212,194
828,176,507

31 December 2013

47,981,268,324
340,628,248
454,412,556

52,554,505,729

(1,242,264,761)

48,776,309,128

(695,332,722)

51,312,240,968

48,080,576,406

The total allowance for impairment of loans and advances amounted to RMB 1,242 million
(31 December 2013: RMB 695 million), of which RMB 368 million (31 December 2013:
RMB 248 milion) represents the individually assessed impairment allowance and the
remaining amount of RMB 873 million {31 December 2013: RMB 447 million) represents
the collectively assessed impairment allowance.

Loans and advances neither past due nor impaired

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither past due nor
impaired can be assessed by reference to the five rating classification system adopted by

the Bank.

31 December 2014
Pass
Special mention

31 December 2013
Pass
Special mention

Corporate
loans

45,255,857,754
23,683,708

Refail
loans

6,000,808,985
2,766,581

Total

51,256,666,739
26,450,289

45,279,541,462

5,003,575,566

51,283,117,028

41,913,277,928 5,859,853,656 47,873,131,584

09,644,019 8,492,721 108,136,740

42.012,921,847 5,968,346,377 47,981,268,324
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[English translation for reference only]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Loans and advances (continued)

Loans and advances past due bui not impaired

At the inception of loans, the Bank will appoint independent valuers to determine the fair
value of coliateral. The Bank will review the latest value of collateral when there is
objective evidence of impairment of loan.

The breakdown by overdue period is as follows:

Past due up Past due Past due Past due

to 30 days  30-60 days €0-90 days over 90 days Total
31 December 2014
Corporate loans 97,278,808 59,098,519 69,915,562 11,790,076 238,082,965
Retail loans 163,537,171 26,984,982 14,607,076 - 205,129,229
Total 260,815,979 86,083,501 84,522 638 11,790,076 443,212,194
31 December 2013
Corporate loans 167,538,188 2,072,836 - - 169,611,024
Retail loans 150,245,209 17,006,188 3,765,827 - 171,017,224
Total 317,783,397 19,079,024 3,765,827 - 340,628,248
Loans and advances individually impaired
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Corporate loans 770,694,125 403,012,770
Retail loans 57,482,382 51,399,786

828,178,507 454,412,556

Loans and advances renegotiated

Renegotiated loans represent the loans that original contract repayment terms have been
modified as a result of the deterioration of borrowers' financial conditions or inability to
repay the loans according to contractual terms. As at 31 December 2014, there is no
renegotiated loans held by the Bank. As of 31 December 2013, there was no renegotiated
loan held by the Bank. '
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DES BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
-(All amounts expressed in RMB unless ctherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Trading assets and available-for-sale (“AFS”) securities

The tables below analyse the Bank's investment securities by issuers’ credit rating:

RMB Securities
31 December 2014

Rated as AAA

Rated as AA+

Rated as AA

Rated as AA-

Unrated:

PBOC notes

Bonds issued by policy banks
Treasury bonds

31 December 2013

Rated as AAA

Rated as AA+

Rated as AA

Rated as AA-

Unrated:

PBOC notes

Bonds issued by policy banks
Treasury bonds

Trading Assets

AFS Securities

1,481,804,867 182,373,962
683,558,634 -
49,958,743 50,135,320
259,336,988 -

- 99,916,986
3,889,819,953 2,131,647,687
40,229,148 650,486,820
6,404,708,433 3,114,560,775

Trading assets

676,804,706
318,473,082
1,460,463,969
219,263,096

902,662,369
9,705,594

AFS securities

793,647,900
348,158,042

199,521,723
147,382,372
238,613.879

3,587,372,816

1,727,323,816
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English transiation for reference only]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk

Market Risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, equity prices, credit spreads and commedity prices, as well as their correlations and
implied voiatilities. The Bank’s exposure to market risk is categorized into:

» Trading portfolios: Arising from positions taken for (i} market-making, (if) client-facilitation
and (iii) benefiting from market opportunities.

e Banking portfolios: Arising from (i) positions taken to manage the interest rate risk of the
Bank's retail and commercial banking assets and liabilities; (i) structural foreign
exchange risk arising mainly from the Bank's USD capital and accrual interest which is
denominated in currencies other than CNY.

Market Risk Management

China BRMC establishes the Bank's risk appetite and framework for market risk and China
MLRC serves as the executive forum for overseeing various aspects of market risk taking
including limit managemernt, policies, processes, methodologies and systems, and report to
China Risk Exco.

The Bank’s approach to market risk management is formulated on the following building blocks:

“ flisk Methedalagies Pracesses, Systems ans Reports

Policies

The Market Risk Framework sets out overall approach towards market risk management. The
Core Market Risk Policy (CMRP) establishes the base standards for market risk management
within the bank. The Policy implementation Guidance and Requirements (PIGR) complements
the CMRP and set out guidance and requirements with more details for specific subject matters.
Both CMRP and PIGR facilitate the identification, measurement, control, monitoring and reporting
of market risk in a consistent manner within the bank. The Market Risk Stress Test Framework
sets out the overall approach, standards and controls governing the performance of market risk
stress testing. ‘

Risk Methodologies

Value-at-Risk (VaR) is a method that computes the potential losses on risk positions as a result
of movements in market rates and prices, over a specified time horizon and to a given level of
confidence. The Bank's VaR model is based on historical simulation with a one-day holding
period and a 95% level of confidence. Tail VaR (TVaR), which is an average of the potential
losses beyond the given 95% level of confidence, is used by the bank to monitor and limit market
risk exposures. TVaR is supplemented by risk control metrics such as sensitivities to risk factors
and loss triggers for management action.

The Bank conducts backtesting to verify the predictiveness of the VaR model. Backtesting
compares VaR calculated for positions at the close of each business day with the revenues which
actually arise on those positions on the following business day. The backtesting revenues
exclude fees and commissions, and revenues from intra-day trading. For backtesting, VaR at the
99% level of confidence and over a one-day holding period is used.
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless ctherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

50 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
50.3 Market risk (continued)
A Market Risk Management (continued)

VaR models such as historical simulation VaR permit the estimation of the aggregate portfolio
market risk potential loss due to a range of market risk factors and instruments. VaR models have
limitations which include but are not limited to: (i) past changes in market risk factors may not
provide accurate predictions of the future market movements and (ii) may understate the risk
arising from severe market risk related events.

To monitor the vulnerability to unexpected but plausible extreme market risk related events, the
Bank has implemented an extensive stress testing policy for market risk where regular and
multiple stress tests are run covering trading and banking portfolios through a combination of
historical and hypothetical scenarios depicting risk faciors movement.

TVaR is the key risk metric used to manage the Bank's assefs and liabilities. The bank manages
banking book interest rate risk arising from mismatches in the interest rate profile of assets and
liabilities, including basis risk arising from different interest rate benchmarks, interest rate re-
pricing risk, yield curve risks and embedded optionality. :

Processes, Systems and Reports

Robust internal control processes and systems are designed and implemented to support the
Bank’s approach for market risk management. Additionally, regular reviews of these control
processes are conducted, which provide senior management with objective and timely
assessments of the control processes’ appropriateness and effectiveness. Regular review on
market risk system is conducted at Group level.

The day-to-day market risk monitoring, control and analysis is managed by the RMG Market and
Liquidity Risk unit - an independent market risk management function that reports to the CRO.

B  Market Risk in 2014

Trading Portfolio

The following table shows for the Bank's trading portfolio, the period-end, average, high and low
diversified TVaR.

The following table is computed in Singapore dollars and translated into Renminbi using PBOC’s
respective year-end rates for presentation purpose.

As at 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014

RMB in million 31 December 2014 Average Highest Lowest

Total 11.02 6.68 11.19 2.81
As at 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013

RMB in million 31 December 2013 Average Highest Lowest

Total 7.893 7.59 10.59 4.28

The key market risk drivers of Trading portfolios are RMB IR position and USD/RMB FX
positions.
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]
50 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
50.3 Market Risk (continued)
B  Market Risk in 2014 (continued)

The estimated MtM PL for interest rate position as at 31 December 2014, assuming a 50 basis
point increase in general interest rates was a decrease of RMB 18.87 million.

The estimated MtM PL for foreign exchange position as of 31 December 2014, assuming USD
appreciation by 5% against RMB was an increase of RMB 2,17 million.

Banking Portfolio

The following tables show for the Bank’s banking portfolio, the period-end, average, high and low
diversified TVaR.

The following tables are computed in Singapore doliars and translated into Renminbi using
PBOC's respective year-end rates for presentation purpose.

Table 1 Treasury Banking

Asat 1 January 2014 fo 31 December 2014

RMB in million 31 December 2014 Average Highest Lowest
Total 7.01 2.35 7.01 0.84
RMB in million Asat 1 Jaﬁuary 2013 to 31 December 2013
31 December 2013 Average Highest Lowest
Total 4.10 1.75 428 0.75

Table 2 Central Operations

1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014

RMB in million  Asat 12/31/2014 Average Highest Lowest

Total 21.96 23.87 33.78 13.63

1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013

RMB in million  As at 12/31/2013 Average Highest Lowest

Total 15.49 23.23 36.57 14.16

The key market risk drivers of Banking portfolios are USD/RMB FX position and RMB interest
rate positions. The economic value impact of changes in foreign exchange and interest rates is
simulated for the Banking portfolio.

The estimated value volatility for interest rate position as at 31 December 2014, assuming a 50
basis point increase in general interest rates was an increase of RMB 56.56 million.

The estimated value volatility for foreign exchange position as of 31 December 2014, assuming
USD appreciation by 5% against RMB was an increase of Rmb 69.11 million.

63



r—

1

7
i

r—

I'W

o

]

oL -2

[

L

[

1
e

[

J—

C

7

-~
—

I

[ e [.___._i [44~J E__i

DBS BANK [CHINA) LIMITED

~ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
{All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

50 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

50.4 Liquidity risk

Funding liquidity risk (or liquidity risk) is the current and prospective risk arising from the Bank to
meet its contractual or regulatory obligations when they come due without incurring substantial
losses. Liquidity obligations arise from withdrawals of deposits, repayments of purchased funds
at maturity, and extensions of credit and working capital needs. The Bank seeks to project,
monitor and manage its liquidity needs under normal as well as adverse circumstances.

China MLRC is the primary party responéible for liquidity risk management based on the
Liguidity Risk Management Framework approved by China BRMC, and reports to China Risk
Exco.

The primary tool of monitoring liquidity risk is the maturity mismatch analysis, which presents the
profile of future expected cash flows under pre-defined scenarios. The Bank compares the
expected maturity mismatch cash flow and bank counter balancing capacity. This is monitored
against available funding and liquid assets across successive time bands and across major
currencies under normal and adverse scenarios. |n addition, other monitoring metrics (for
example, liquidity ratios, deposit concentration ratio, and balance sheet analysis) are used as
complementary tools to the maturity mismatch analysis.

To manage liquidity risk within the tolerance, limits and triggers are set on maturity mismatches
under normal and adverse scenarios and other monitoring metrics. Such limits seek to ensure
that adequate funding and liquid assets are available to meet liquidity needs under both normal
and adverse scenarios.

As part of its management of liquidity risk, the Bank employs a number of management
strategies, such as maintaining sufficient liquidity risk counter balancing capacity (including high
quality liquid assets, unsecured borrowing capacity and various types of managerial actions),
maintaining diversified sources of liquidity and having robust internal control processes. In order
to tackle with potential or actual crisis, the Bank establishes a liquidity contingency plans and
business recovery plans to ensure the prompt actions can be taken under stress conditions.
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Al amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English transiation for reference only]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity risk {continued)

Off-balance sheet ifems

31 December 2014

Letters of credit issued
Letters of guarantee issued
Irrevocable loan commitment
Bank acceptances

Standby letter of credit
Letters of credit confirmation
Operating lease commitments
Total

31 December 2613

Letiers of credit issued
Letters of guarantee issued
Irrevocable loan commitment
Bank acceptances

Standby letter of credit
Letters of credit confirmation
Operating lease commitments
Total

Fair value hierarchy

No later than

1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
24,758,826,200 - - 24,758,826,200
962,730,347 302,508,081 191,352,975 1,456,592, 403
83,634,259 1,605,094,926 225,386,215 1,914,115,400
1,845,711,700 - - 1,845,711,700
8,250,891,509 1,014,153,010 - 9,265,044,609
9,709,888 - - 9,709,888
179,341,483 295,211,415 355,285 474,908,183
36,090,845,476  3,216,968,432 417,094,475 39,724,908,383
28,157,205,089 26,968,700 - 28,184,263,789
1,990,462,075 183,460,609 124,917,353 2,298,840,037
79,900,000 1,019,436,977 68,408,258 1,167,745,235
1,272,656,919 - - 1,272,666,919
4,751,056,899 537,449,278 - 5,288,506,177
202,641,982 - - 202,641,982
148,901,055 147,680,266 11,981,862 308,563,283
36,602,914,019 1,914,995830 205,307,573 38,723,217,422

CBRC guidance specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those
valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained
from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Bank's market assumptions. These two
types of inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:

* Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

+ Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices). This level includes
the majority of the OTC derivative contracts and RMB debt instruments traded in inter-bank market.
The sources of input parameters like LIBOR yield curve or counterparty credit risk are Bloomberg and

China Bond.

+ Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs). This level includes structured financial instruments.

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The Bank considers
relevant and observable market prices in its valuations where possible.
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

{English transiation for reference only]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets and liabilities continuously measured at fair value

31 December 2014

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

- Trading securities

- Derivatives assets
- Financial assets purchased under
resale agreements

Available—for-sale investments
Total Assets

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
- Derivative liabilities
- Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements
Financial liabilities designated as fair
value through profit or loss -
SIPs

Total Liabilities

31 December 2013

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
- Trading securities
- Derivatives assets
- Financial assets purchased
under resale agreements

Available—for-sale investments
Total Assets

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
- Derivative liabilities

Financial liabilities designated as fair
value through profit or loss - SiPs
Total Liahilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- 6,404,708,433 - 6,404,708,433
- 2,466,125 887 - 2,466,125,887
- 2.018,231,5639 - 2,018,231,539
- 3,114,560,775 - 3,114,560,775
- 14,003,626,634 - 14,003,626,634
- (2,464,821,531) - (2,464,821,531)
- {2,249,084,549) - (2,249,084,549)
- (85,315,459) - (85,315,459)
- (4,799,221,539) - (4,799,221,539)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- 3,587,372,8186 - 3,587,372,816
- 4,036,707 687 477,023 4.037,184,710
- 2,857.612,839 - 2,857,612,839
- 1,727,323,916 - 1,727,323,916
- 12,209,017,258 477,023 12,209,494,281
- (4,042,559,952) (477,023) (4,043,036,975)
- {83,646,795) - {83,646,795)
- {4,126,206,747) (477,023) (4,126,683,770)
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

50 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
50.5 Fair value hierarchy(continued)
(b) Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but disclose their fair value
Fair values estimation is made in accordance with information of market and financial instruments in some

specific point. Estimation is based on following methods and supposition:

Cash and due from other banks and financial institutions, Deposits with the central bank, Deposits with
other banks,Due to other banks and financial institutions, Interest receivable, Interest payable, Other
assets and Other liabilities.

Given that maturities of these financial assets and liabilities are either short-term or re-priced more than
once every year; the carrying amount approximates the fair value, belonging to Tier 2.

Loans and advances

Because the RMB loan interest rates follows the movement of PBOC benchmark interest rates, and
interest tares for loans denominated in foreign exchange are generally floating rates, fair value of loans is
close to carrying value.

Customer deposits

The fair value of current, savings and money market accounts is the amount payable on demand at the
reporting date. The carrying value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and placements approximates to its
fair value because they are mainly payable in short term period.

The Group takes the date on which events causing the fransfers between the levels take place as the
timing specific for recognising the transfers. There are no significant transfers in or out regarding. to assets
or liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss and categorised within Level 3. There is no
transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 for current year.
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DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

{All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)
[English translation for reference only]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Capital management

The Bank's capital management focuses on monitoring of the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR). DBS
(China) actively manages the capital to achieve the following:

(a)To ensure DBS (China)'s continuous compliance with the regulatory Capital Adequacy Ratio
requirements and have sufficient capital to support the internally assessed capital demand;

(b)To ensure DBS (China)'s capital is adequate to support the business strategy and growth;

(c)To optimize the return to shareholders while maintaining a prudent level of capital in relation fo the
underlying risks of the business.

The Bank calculates and discloses Capital Adequacy Ratio in accordance with “The Trial Measures on
Management of Capital for Commercial Banks” and other regulatory requirements issued by the CBRC.

The table below provides the analysis of regulatory capital and the ratios of the Bank.

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Core Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 11.07% 12.68%
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 1.07% 12.68%
Total capital adequacy ratio 11.61% 13.06%
Core Tier 1 capital 7 8,515,020,901 8,145,812,059
Regutatory Deductions for Core Tier 1 capital - -
Net core Tier 1 capital 8,515,020,801 8,145,812,059
Other Tier 1 capital - -
Net Tier 1 capital 8,515,020,901 8,145,812,059
Tier 2 capital 414,088,361 240,920,166
Total regulatory capital 8.929,109,262 B8,386,732,225
Total risk-weighted assets 76,898,526,725 64,232,861,100
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